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The Oak Lawn Village Historic District comprises some thirty- five 
buildings clustered along T 'vTilbur Avenue, a narrow country road which 
curves for half a mile through the meadows bordering the Meshanticut 
Brook in rural western Cranston. The district follows Wilbur Avenue 
easterly from its intersection with Natick Road to the railroad bridge 
at Oaklawn Avenue, broadening approximately in the middle at Wheelock 
Avenue to include buildings on Searle Avenue and Exchange Street. 
Lying between the broad outwash plain of east Cranston and the rolling 
hills of western Cranston, the village is at the topographical and 
historic cross-roads of the community.

District boundaries were defined to incorporate the earliest village 
settlement as well as the late Victorian structures erected near the 
railroad. They include those buildings linked visually along the main 
thoroughfares of the village.

The eastern boundary of the district is clearly marked by the stone 
railroad bridge (Sketch Map #1) under which one passes to enter the 
village and which, together with two small memorial parks, (#' '2, #40) 
separates the historic district from the commercial buildings and traffic 
on Oaklawn Avenue, a busy north-south thoroughfare which by-passes the 
district to its east.

From the western boundary, the district presents a clear contrast 
to the open fields and woodlands along Natick Road, and reveals a
cluster of. white houses around the white clapboarded Baptist Church 
with its picturesque belfry (£22) .

Unified by material, scal$ and skt-back, the ;distriet is essentially 
residential, containing but three public buildings and one commercial 
structure. The district is composed of an amalgam of vernacular 
building types, which can be differentiated generally as 18th century, 
rural Greek Revival, Queen Anne, and simplified Shingle Style. 
The majority of houses are modest, one and a half stories high, faced 
with either clapboards or shingles, and once had picket fences and elm 
trees lining the road. Despite the loss of the latter elements, the
early 20th century character of . the. village has been retained because of the lack of encroaching subdivisions and because of tne winding
character of Wilbur Avenue itself, which presents limited vistas of 
architecturally unified buildings.

On diagonally opposite corners of Wilbur Avenue and Natick Road, the 
Thomas Brayton House (c. 1767 #20) and, the Jeremiah Wilbur House, 
(c. 1810 #18) mark the western boundary of the district. Both are white- 
painted, clapboard, 1%-story gambrel roofed houses with .associated 
large barns.

See con-tiiLu&tlon. sheet 1
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The center of the village is defined by two public buildings, 
the Oak Lawn Community Baptist Church (1879, #22) on the north side 
of Wilbur Avenue, and the Oak Lawn Public Library (#15), housed in 
a Greek Revival school-house directly opposite. East of the library 
are two 20th century houses (#13, 14) -- one story structures set 
back on a hill and well screened by evergreens -- that do not intrude 
on the character of the district. Further east, Wilbur Avenue drops 
sharply and curves slightly to the north to cross the small Meshanticut 
Brook.

The change in elevation and direction of the road are fortuitous 
because they hide the primary intrusion in the Oak Lawn Village 
Historic District -- Interstate 295--which divides the village in 
half. Construction of the highway destroyed the building housing the 
Volunteer Fire Brigade and the small gambrel-roofed cottage where the 
first town meeting was held in 1754. Raised above Wilbur Avenue by 
unembellished concrete piers, the highway itself is seen as two separate, 
adjoining roads constituting an open-sided tunnel to be passed under. 
Though it is clearly an intrusion into^the historic district, the 
highway is actually not visible from within much of the village for 
Wilbur Avenue bends again in front of the Job and Roby Wilbur House 
(c. 1840,#11)and an attractive barn and gazebo on the property quickly 
re-assert the rural early twentieth century character of the historic 
district.

As Wilbur Avenue turns south-east, Wheelock Avenue begins and 
runs almost due east. On the north side of Wilbur, just at the start 
of Wheelock, stands the Edward Searle House (c. 1677, #29). Built 
initially as a one room gable-roofed Stone einder, the house was 
enlarged before 1720 with the addition of a five-bay 2%-story house 
with a large brick central chimney and gable roof. Today, the house 
is painted a cranberry color differentiating it from the Late Victorian 
and early twentieth century buildings in this part of the district.

The Searle House, the Church, and the library building, together 
with the Jeremiah Wilbur, Thomas Brayton, and Job Wilbur houses, 
represent the village as it existed before its evolution as a street­ 
car suburb.

Further east on Wheelock Avenue, where it joins Searle Avenue, 
is the Oaklawn Grange (1914, #30), a simple one-story shingled structure 
with a gable roof. Except for one much-altered 1^-story flank-gable

See continuation sheet 2
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Greek Revival house (#41), the remainder of the district is filled 
with Late Victorian and early twentieth century buildings. Those 
displaying the most craftsmanship are 18 Searle Avenue (1888,#35) 
and numbers 73 Wilbur (1884, #32) and 83 Wilbur (1888, #3). All are 
1^-story cross-gable structures with shingles in the gables and 
elaborately turned porches. They were built by Henry Pratt, a local 
carpenter whose workshop is included in the district (#34).

Two small burying grounds, one (#27) associated with the Edward 
Searle house and another (#23) with the Church, are also included in 
the district. Only one building (#42) significantly intrudes on the 
character of the historic district. A two-story brick apartment 
house with flat roof and two-story wrought iron front porch, it looks 
like a small motel, and occupies an area equivalent to the four lots 
bordering on the north. Its design, scale, and set-back -- behind a 
black top parking lot -- set the apartment building off from the rest 
of the village. Although the apartments .are not especially well 
screened, the angle of Wilbur Avenue again proves fortunate, because 
it directs the eye past the apartment building to other visual focal 
points.

Inventory of Oak Lawn Historic District

1. Railroad bridge -- originally constructed in 1852, the old 
bridge was so small it was known as the "hole in the wall," 
and replaced in 1950.

2. World War I Memorial Park, placque dedicated 1924, flagpole 
1930. "In honor of all those Oak Lawn boys who served in the 
Great War II"and, in memory of Preston Towne and Charles E. 
Jenkins, Jr.

3. House (30 Wilbur Ave.): c. 1900, 2%-story, cross gabled roof; 
sheathed with modern composition. Known as the Pink Store at 
the turn of the twentieth century.

4. House (11 Warren Ave.): c. 1899, 1%-story cross-gambrel roofed 
house, clapboarded .

5. Site of the old Oak Lawn Band Stand.

See continuation sheet 3
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7. House (62 Wilbur Avenue): c. 1894, 1%-story cross-gambrel roofed 
house, clapboarded.

8. House (78 Wilbur Avenue): 1870, 1%-story cross-gable house, 
clapboarded with gable screen, shingled porch, and saw-tooth 
molding on lintels and bargeboards.

9. House (88 Wilbur Avenue): c. 1900, 2%-story flank gambrel roofed 
house, large cross-gable accommodating second and third story 
windows shingled with stone press supporting roof over first 
story porch.

11. Roby Wilbur House (108 Wilbur Avenue): c. 1840, a simple Greek 
Revival structure, the building was raised to its present 2^- 
stories c. 19310. Presently end gable roo£; clapboarded. Outbuildings 
include large carriage house converted for residence and an i. ' i 
attractive gazebo.

12. House (Wilbur Avenue): c. 1900, 1^-story, cross-gable roof, :; 
shingled. Home of village lamplighter at the turn of the 20th 
century.

15. Oak Lawn Public Library (230 Wilbur Avenue): c. 1830, 1-story,
end gable roof, clapboarded with corner boards and large returns. 
Cut in half and moved here ca. 1840, the building served as 
village school until 1895. Rear addition 1966.

16. House (238 Wilbur Avenue): c. 1897, 2%-stories, roof, first 
story clapboarded, remainder shingled, unusual terra cotta 
fireplace, diamond window panes, front porch.

17. House (258 Wilbur Avenue): c. 1894, 2^-stories, shingled, gable 
front roof supported by shingled bracket, front porch.

18. Jeremiah Wilbur House (191 Natick Road): c. 1810, 1%-story,
5-bay clapboarded house, with a gambrel roof. Pedimented center 
doorway framed by paired columns and side-lights added early 20th 
century. 19th century addition -- 1^-story gambrel roofed 
ell -- at the rear of the original house. A one-story gable 
roofed milk-house,formerly separate, was added to the house in 
the early 20th century. Originally, a five-room, central chimney

See continuation sheet 4
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plan, the interior is largely altered, the central chimney being 
removed in the 19th century and replaced by two end chimneys.

A large barn stands to the west. Erected on a high stone 
foundation, the gable roofed barn is two stories high with 
vertical sheathing. Dating probably from the mid-nineteenth 
century, the barn replaced an earlier one, whose foundation was 
incorporated and expanded. A two bay carriage house, built 
around the turn of the century, links the barn to a two door 
early 20th century garage further east.

Foundations of Joseph Brayton House, dating from the late 18th 
century, and nearby barn.

Thomas Brayton House (271 Wilbur Avenue): c. 1767, 1%-story,
clapboarded, with gambrel roof. Originally of five room central
chimney plan, a large cross-gable and the simple front porch
on which it rests were added in the late 19th century; the chimney
was replaced by two small ones. The property includes a
long low shed of pegged construction between the house and an
early 20th century shingled cross-gabled barn.

The Oak Lawn Community Baptist Church (229 Wilbur Avenue): 
1879, simple clapboarded structure three bays deep erected on 
the site of the old Quaker Meeting House (ca. 1729) which was 
moved behind it and demolished in 1956 to make way for a cinder 
block addition. Ornamented with carved wooden lancet arches 
having broad foot crosses above the windows and the entrance door. 
The arch motif is continued in the belfry, the most elaborate 
element of the building.

Old Quaker Burying Ground associated with the old Meeting House.

Parsonage (215 Wilbur Avenue): 1925, 2%-stories, shingled, with 
hip roof and front porch.

House (2 Brookdale Avenue): c. 1890, 1^-story clapboarded house 
with end gable roof and enclosed porch.

House (127 Wilbur Avenue): c. 1875, 2%-story clapboarded with 
end-gable roof and two round arched windows in gable, with 
unusual pendants, Late Victorian door hood, and a picture window.

See continuation sheet 5
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427. Burial ground associated with Edward Searle house.

28. House (103 Wilbur Avenue): 1864, 1^-stories, clapboarded, with 
cross-gabled roof with simple center front porch and a bay 
window.

29. Edward Searle House (109 Wilbur Avenue): 1677, c. 1720, 2%- 
stories, clapboarded, pedimented portico (c. 1920). Built 
originally as a "stone-ender", 1% stories high, the 5-bay, 
2h story addition was constructed, perhaps in two stages, 
by c. 1720; it has a five room, central chimney plan. 
Included in the Historic American Building Survey (R.I. 11)

The Oak Lawn Grange (Wheelock Avenue): 1914. 1-story, shingled, 
five bays deep, simple enclosed,1 pedimented entrance vestibule.

31. House (83 Wilbur Avenue): 1886, 1%-stories, clapboarded, with 
shingles and a diamond window in cross gable.

32. House (73 Wilbur Avenue): 1884, 1%-stories, clapboarded with
shingling, and a diamond window in the cross gables, and a
well turned wrap-around porch terminating in an octagon.

Henry Pratt Workshop (5 Turner Avenue): c. 1880. 1-story 
shingled with broad, tapering high tower.

House (18 Searle Avenue): 1888, 1^-stories, clapboarded with 
imbricated pattern shingling and a diamond window in the cross- 
gables. The balusters of the front porch match those of the 
fence enclosing the property, which is extraordinary.

House (4 Searle Avenue): 1854, 2%-story, sheathed in modern 
composition with front porch and second story bay window.

Office (5 Exchange Street): 1879, 1-story shingled, with a
flat roof and "boom-town" front; originally the village post office

House (Exchange Street): c. 1878, 2%-stories, modern composition. 
A two-story addition, built in two stages adjoins the original 
Italianate structure with its gable-end roof and two-story bay 
window.

The Oak Lawn Grange Memorial Park, dedicated 1965.

See continuation sheet 6
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41. . House (4 Wilbur Avenue): c. 1845, 2^ stories, clapboarded, with 
two-story ell. Originally Greek Revival style.

Non conforming intrusions detracting from the integrity of 
the district.

6. House (50 Wilbur Avenue): c. 1900, 1%-story, shingled, with end- 
gable roof and front porch.

10. House (96 Wilbur Avenue): 1932, 2-story, shingled, 3-bay 
"Colonial" with columns flanking the entry.

13. House (200 Wilbur Avenue): c. 1915, 1^ stories, shingled 
"bungaloid" with hip roof.

14. House (208 Wilbur Avenue): 1957, 1-story "ranch" house with field- 
stone and shingles on the principal facade, clapboarded on 
remaining sides.

21. House (239 Wilbur Avenue): 1914, 1-story shingled bungaloid 
structure with a hip roof and front porch.

33. House (20 Searle Avenue): 1914, 1^-story, shingled, with a gable 
end roof and 3 bays.

36. House (16 Searle Avenue): 1936, 1^-story "ranch house," sheathed 
in brick and shingles.

42. Apartment Building (55 Wilbur Avenue): 1966, 2-story, brick, 
flat-roofed, 2-story wrought iron front porch.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Oak Lawn's significance derives from its status as one of the 
two early village settlements in the city. Centrally located, it was 
natural that Cranston's first town meeting was held here in 1754; 
during the eighteenth century Oak Lawn served as the new town's civic 
center and in the nineteenth as its social center. Today Oak Lawn 

9 Village incorporates excellent examples of 17th, 18th, and 19th century 
architecture.

Oak Lawn's setting along winding Wilbur Avenue, away from the 
major thoroughfares of Qaklawn Avenue / and Natick Road, its location 
in a small valley, and its old, skilfully built homes give the village 
a sense oftime and place that sets it off from the rest of the rapidly 
developing city of Cranston. The village is regarded by Cranston 
residents as their most historic area west of Pawtuxet. The Searle 
family, attracted by the rich farm-land surrounding the brook, settled 
here shortly after the area was acquired by the Meshanticut Purchase 
of 1662. The Searle House is the best preserved of three .stone-enders 
remaining in Cranston, and was documented by H.A.B.S. in 1956. Its 
clearly visible developmental stages demonstrate the evolution of the 
Rhode Island farmhouse from the late 17th century to the early 18th 
century. The Searle family lived there for generations and Oak Lawn 
was known as Searle's Corners until 1872.

The old Quaker meeting house (c. 1729), on the site of the present 
Baptist church, played a key role in the religious and educational 
life of western Cranston for over 100 years; noted Quaker leader 
Anna Jenkins was reputed to have spoken there, and the presence of 
the church reinforced the village's position as civic center of western 
Cranston.

_The former Meshanticut School is the oldest remaining school 
building in Cranston and serves as a reminder of the era of Proprietors' 
schools that preceded universal public education. For most of the 19th 
century, it was the only school in the Meshanticut area, of Cranston. 
The building continues its public and educational role, housing the 
Oak Lawn Public Library.

See continuation sheet 7



Bayles, Richard, History of Providence County. New York: W. W. Preston 
and Co., 1891, pp 746-785.

Brayton, Gladys W., "The Cranston Story," Rhode Island Yearbook, 1969, 
pp. 55-67.
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VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

The boundaries of the Oak Lawn Village Historic District include 
the railroad bridge at Oak'1 awn Avenue and follow the rear property 
lines of all those lots fronting on Exchange Street, Wheelock Avenue, 
and Wilbur Avenue from the railroad bridge up to and including the 
intersection of Wilbur Avenue and Natick Road.

See continuation sheet 10
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After the Quaker Meeting declined in the mid-nineteenth century, 
the old meeting house was purchased in 1864 by Lodowick Brayton, a 
local resident, for $400. He donated it to the Oak Lawn Benevolent 
Society. It was to support this new Baptist Congregation that Roby 
Wilbur, whose house still stands at the bend of Wilbur Avenue, organized 
the first May Breakfast in America in 186?$. The practice o£ holding 
a huge public breakfast prepared by members of the congregation to 
support the church became the social event of the year for most of 
the town. The tradition has continued to the present, and has been 
adopted elsewhere across America, but it remains a particularly strong 
Rhode Island institution.

The new congregation grew and erected the present Baptist 
Church in 1879. The old Quaker Meeting House was moved behind the 
new building where it was used in the annual May breakfasts until 
its demolition in 1956.

The character of Searle's Corners slowly began to change after 
1854 when the Hartford, Providence, and Fishkill 1 ; Railroad was 
built and a station erected at the edge of the village. Throughout 
the 1870*s the station served as the primary depot for receiving 
materials used in the construction of the state institutions at nearby 
Howard, a mile east of the historic district.

Both Job Wilbur and Francis Turner, who had acquired the Searle 
House and farm in 1849, realized the opportunities for suburban 
development in the village. They both platted their farms in house 
lots. One plat was called Locust Glen (1874), and Job Wilbur suggested 
that the area's name be changed to Oak Lawn, both names reflecting 
the bucolic image real estate developers were attempting to create. 
(There are, in fact, very few oak trees in the village).

A local newspaper .ran the following advertisement in May, 1873:

"The Oak Lawn plat is now ready. Oak Lawn in Cranston is located 
on the Hartford Rail Road, ten to-eighteen \minutes ride from the city / 
depot. The ... site is one of the finest ever offered for sale 
around Providence. It can be reached quickly by steam cars and the 
communication or quarterly fares for residents are very low, being 
about the same as horse car fares. .... The need for such a site 
for suburban residences, easy of access, somewhat similar to Hyde

See continuation sheet 35
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Park near Boston, has long been felt by the citizens of Providence, and 
an opportunity to secure lots in such a place from first hands on 
easy terms is now offered"....

Numbers 73, 83, 103, and 127 Wilbur Avenue (#32, 31, 28, and 26 
on the sketch map), as well as 18 Searle Avenue (#35 on the sketch 
map), and the buildings on Exchange Street were all built on the 
Oak Lawn Plat.

By the 1950's the state highway department and the Providence 
newspapers had contracted Oak Lawn to one word.

The grouping of the former post office (#38) and store (#3) 
near the site of the old railroad station (#43; now demolished) 
reflects the suburban character of the village at the turn of the 
century. Similarly, the houses at 18 Searle (#35) and 73 (#32), 78 
(#8), and 83 (#31) Wilbur Avenue reveal the excellent craftsmanship 
of local carpenters. Numbers 62 and 68 Wilbur Avenue add to the 
picture and together with #238 and #258 Wilbur Avenue present a 
microcosm of suburban building trends at the close of the nineteenth 
century.

The Oak Lawn Grange was organized in 1909 and its building 
erected in 1914. It served as the social center for the village 
until the era of the super-highway. One of two granges remaining 
in Cranston, the Oak Lawn Grange was originally concerned primarily with 
agriculture, and though only one of the present anembers is a farmer, 
the building is still frequently used for social events and remains 
a striking visual reminder of the city's agrarian origins.

Thus, the Oak Lawn Village Historic District -incorporates the 
historic, civic and social center of 18th and 19th century Cranston 
at^the same time its boundaries, from the barn on the west to the 
railroad on the east, reflect the evolution of the village from rural 
center to early suburb.
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Brayton, Gladys W., "Curators Corner," Cranston Historical Society 
Newsletter, Sept. 1971.

Oaklawn Baptist Church, May Day -- A souvenir issued by the Ladies
Union Society of Oak Lawn, R. I. on the Anniversary of their
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GPO. 892 455



Form No. 10-300a 
(Rev. 10-74)

UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR 
NATIONAL PARK SERVICE

NATIONAL REGISTER OF HISTORIC PLACES 
INVENTORY -- NOMINATION FORM iillliii

CONTINUATION SHEET 10 ITEM NUMBER 10 PAGE

The property lines of those lots on the south side of Searle 
Avenue form the district's northern boundary, which extends across 
Searle Avenue to include lot 481. In the case of lot 311, the 
northern boundary of the district bisects the lot to form a line 
continuous with the rear property line of lots 313 and 309.

The northern boundary of the historic district continues 
across Natick Road to include the southern property line of lot 34, 
and continues to the northwest corner of lot 34. The district 
boundary forms a line from that corner to a point 500 feet north 
of the junction of Wilbur Avenue and Conley's Avenue. The western 
boundary of the district proceeds southerly from that point to 
cross Wilbur Avenue and follows the property line of lot 17. The 
district's southern boundary begins at the southwest corner of lot 
17 and crosses Natick Road, continuing along the southern property 
line of every lot bordering Wilbur Avenue, and proceeding southerly 
at the western property line of lot 821 to incorporate that lot. 
The district boundary continues across Warren Avenue and along 
the southern property line of lot 795, following Wilbur Avenue 
back to the railroad bridge.
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